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ICAEW welcomes the opportunity to comment on the consultation, Miscellaneous Code 

Amendments, published by the Code Committee of the Takeover Panel on 2 December 2021, a 

copy of which is available from this link. 

 

This response of 17 February 2022 has been prepared by the ICAEW Corporate Finance Faculty, 

ICAEW’s centre of professional expertise in corporate finance. The faculty contributes to policy 

development and responds to consultations by international organisations, governments, 

regulators and other professional bodies. It provides a wide range of services, information, 

guidance, events and media to its members, including its highly regarded magazine Corporate 

Financier and its popular series of best-practice guidelines. The faculty’s international network 

includes member organisations and individuals from major professional services groups, specialist 

advisory firms, companies, banks and alternative lenders, private equity, venture capital, law firms, 

brokers, consultants, policymakers and academic experts. More than 40% of the faculty’s 

membership are from beyond ICAEW. 

 

ICAEW is a world-leading professional body established under a Royal Charter to serve the public 

interest. In pursuit of its vision of a world of strong economies, ICAEW works with governments, 

regulators and businesses and it leads, connects, supports and regulates more than 157,800 

chartered accountant members in over 147 countries. ICAEW members work in all types of private 

and public organisations, including public practice firms, and are trained to provide clarity and 

rigour and apply the highest professional, technical and ethical standards. 
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ANSWERS TO SPECIFIC QUESTIONS 

Q1 Should the Code be amended as proposed so as to require a publicly identified potential 

offeror to announce any minimum level, or particular form, of consideration it is obliged to 

offer to offeree company shareholders? 

1. We support the proposal to require a publicly identified potential offeror to announce any 

minimum level, or particular form, of consideration it is obliged to offer to offeree company 

shareholders.  

2. We consider, however, that transparency can be achieved - with greater certainty - if the 

announcement is made by the Opening Position Disclosure (OPD) deadline. There will be 

some cases where it may be difficult to make an announcement at the start of the offer 

period, without it being qualified. Would the Panel be minded to agree to a qualified 

announcement being made or, if not, would it consider providing additional flexibility by 

changing the proposed deadline to coincide with that for the OPD? 

 

Q2 Should a mandatory offeror, and any person acting in concert with it, be restricted from 

acquiring additional interests in shares in the offeree company in the 14 days up to and 

including: (a) the unconditional date; and (b) the expiry of an acceptance condition 

invocation notice? 

3. We accept that a target shareholders’ acceptance decisions may be facilitated by the 

freezing of a mandatory offeror’s control position as proposed in the PCP. However, we are 

aware of little evidence to suggest that this benefit will in fact crystallise. We are concerned 

that the negative consequence for liquidity of removing a willing buyer will outweigh the 

theoretical benefit to shareholders, and thus question the proposed rule changes. Can the 

Panel provide further explanation for its decision to initiate these changes? 

 

Q3 Should the new Note 5 on Rule 9.5 be introduced as proposed in order to clarify the 

application of the “look-back period” for determining the minimum price of a mandatory 

offer? 

4. Yes, the new Note on Rule 9.5 should be introduced as proposed. 

 

Q4 Should the test in limb (b) of Note 8 on Rule 9.1 be deleted such that the test in limb (a) 

would become the sole test for determining whether a chain principle offer is required, 

other than in exceptional circumstances? 

5. Yes, we agree with the removal of the subjective test in limb (b). 

 

Q5 Should the threshold at which relative values would be considered to be “significant” 

for the purposes of the test currently set out in limb (a) of Note 8 on Rule 9.1 be reduced 

from 50% to 30%? 

6. Yes, the threshold should be reduced as proposed. 

 

Q6 Should Note 1 on Rules 35.1 and 35.2, Note 2 on Rule 2.5 and Note 2 on Rule 2.8 be 

amended as proposed in relation to the restrictions following the lapsing of an offer or a 

statement of no intention to bid? 

7. Yes, the amendments should be made as proposed. 

 

Q7 Should the minor amendments to the Code set out in Section 7 of the PCP be adopted 

as proposed? 

8. We are broadly in agreement with the amendments although we think that the proposal 

regarding the term ‘whitewash’ could be further improved. There would be merit, for example, 

if the replacement term better signalled that the dispensation from Rule 9 is dependent on 

shareholder approval. This would differentiate such a dispensation from a waiver that is 

granted by the Panel (and not subject to the approval of shareholders). 


